NORTH KITSAP
B FIRE & RESCUE

Bi-North Fire District

Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes
July 21, 2025
Station 71, Poulsbo Fire Department
Poulsbo, WA

MEETING ATTENDEES

North Kitsap Fire & Rescue: Commissioners: Patrick Pearson, Wilson Stewart, John
Huntington, Chelsea Tate and Gillian Gregory.
Staff: Fire Chief Rick LaGrandeur, Assistant Chief Ryan Buchanan, Volunteer
Tom Curley and Division Assistant Summer Luther.

Poulsbo Fire Department: Commissioners: Darryl Milton, Jim Ingalls, Dave
Ellingson.
Staff: Fire Chief Jim Gillard, Deputy Chief Shane Anderson, Administrative
Director Sawyers

CALL TO ORDER
Meeting was called by to order by Commissioner Huntington at 7:00 p.m.

AGENDA ADDITIONS & DELETIONS
Chief LaGrandeur would like to add discussion on 2026 billing rates.

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE
None

BUSINESS AGENDA

1) Chief LaGrandeur discussed upcoming billing rates to ensure that any future
increases remain aligned between both agencies. While no decisions were made at
this time, the intent is to maintain consistency moving forward. Further discussions
will take place in future individual meetings. Commissioner Pearson asked about the

differences in the current billing structures and requested clarification. Commissioner

Gregory would also like to ensure the rates align with any previous discussion on
increases.



2) Review and evaluation of growth management impacts on shared services and
infrastructure: Chief LaGrandeur highlighted the importance of maintaining
collaborative relationships, even at the county level, including participation in the
regional training consortium. Chief Gillard added that there is ongoing collaboration
between the two departments, including initiatives like the CARES program and
wildland operations. He also mentioned that the Kitsap Fire CARES administrator is
exploring the possibility of becoming a Behavioral Health Agency (BHA), which
would open the door for billing certain services. This is currently under review for
feasibility and potential benefit.

Commissioner Ellingson asked about funding sources for the CARES program.
Commissioner Gregory inquired about the current workload of CARES. Chief Gillard
responded that the team is busy with referrals and is continuously evaluating the
scope of services provided by the teams to balance capacity with community needs.
When asked whether CARES is an on-call service, Chief Gillard clarified that it is
primarily for follow-up care and resource connection, although they occasionally
respond if already on shift.

Commissioner Milton raised questions about the potential to expand services to
provide mobile integrated health and clearly defining which services the fire
department should provide. Chief Gillard explained that CARES has proven effective
by reducing call volumes and that many larger agencies have adopted similar
programs as a level of service.

Commissioner Ellingson expressed appreciation for the collaboration efforts in place
to improve our ability to serve the community. Commissioner Pearson asked whether
all fire districts train the same way and whether that consistency comes from the
training consortium. Additional comments were made praising work on the fire
academy and the positive impact of operations. The group agreed that continuing
momentum will be key. Commissioner Huntington thanked the chiefs for their
leadership and success.

Commissioner Milton also raised the idea of sharing administrative services, such as
maintenance and fleet operations. Chief Gillard stated that the Poulsbo Board is
currently pursuing feasibility studies for a new maintenance/fleet building. and
seismic retrofitting of Station 72 in preparation for a potential Capital bond initiative
in 2026. Commissioner Milton commented that stronger relationships with state
agencies would be beneficial.

Chief Gillard discussed the potential of opening a free-standing emergency
department to the north end in the near future. Commissioner Huntington asked if this
would increase transport volumes. Chief Gillard responded that the co-located Urgent
Care/Free Standing Emergency room would be a significant public safety resource for
our community and the potential for impacts due to patient transfers from the Free



Standing ED to the Main campus would be mitigated by the use of a private
ambulance service for that role.

The group briefly discussed the analytics software, Darkhorse, which show that both
agencies are effectively serving their districts and providing high-quality public
service. Chief Gillard credited this success to the dedication and professionalism of
line staff. Commissioner Gregory also commended the crews and chiefs for their
strong leadership and mentorship.

3) Areas of collaboration and assistance: Future areas for collaboration and mutual
support was discussed. Chief Gillard emphasized the importance of growth planning,
specifically regarding Multi-Family Tax Exemptions (MFTEs), which could pose a
risk to future revenue. Chief LaGrandeur added that there have been some concerns
about the Port of Kingston utilizing Tax Increment Financing (TIF) mechanisms but
that has since been changed.

Chief Gillard also provided an update on Poulsbo Fire’s progress in securing growth-
related impact fees, with support from both the City and County. These fees would
apply to new development, bring in about $100,000 annually in revenue reducing the
reliance on current taxpayers to fund growth related capital projects. The goal is to
implement this change by early 2026.

Commissioner Huntington asked whether this would be managed administratively by
the County or handled internally. Chief Gillard is working with the County to
determine how that would be applied.

Chief LaGrandeur commented how the comprehensive plan addresses anticipated
future growth, and although not all areas are yet clearly identified, early action is
critical to staying ahead of the curve.

Commissioner Ellingson concluded by noting that both districts appear to be
performing well and are setting a positive example of collaboration compared to
many other agencies.

PUBLIC COMMENT
No Public

ADJOURNENT
Motion was made by Commissioner Tate to adjourn the July 21, 2025 Bi-North meeting.
Commissioner Pearson seconded the motion. The meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m.

ATTEST:

Nichole Sawyers, Kitsap County Fire District #18 Board Secretary



